
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

PENSION BOARD 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.00 pm, MONDAY, 5TH DECEMBER, 2016 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Ystafell Gwyrfai, Council Offices,  

 
Caernarfon, Gwynedd. LL55 1SH 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Lowri Haf Evans 

01286 679878 

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

(DISTRIBUTED 25/11/16) 

Complete Agenda



 

PENSION BOARD 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVES  
 
 
 

Anthony William Deakin Cartrefi Conwy 
 

Councillor Aled Ll. Evans 
 

Huw Trainor 

Cyngor Gwynedd Council 
 

North Wales Police 
 
 

 

MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES 
 
 

Victoria Louise Hallaron Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd 
 

Osian Richards Members Representative 
 

                    Sharon Warnes (retired - formerly Gwynedd Council) 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest 

 
 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so that they may be considered 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

4 - 8 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee held on 29.6.2016 be signed as a true record.  

 

 

5.   MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 

9 - 12 

 To submit, for information, minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting 
held on the 15.09.16 and 20.10.16 
 

 

 

6.   ACTUARIAL VALUATION 2016 - UPDATE ON THE PROCESS 
 

13 - 15 

 To consider the Investment Managers report 

 
 

7.   INVESTMENT POOLING 
 

16 - 17 

 Consider the report of the Investment Manager 

 
 

8.   THE PENSIONS REGULATOR PUBLIC SERVICE SURVEY 2016 
 

18 - 30 

 To consider the report 

 
 

9.   SAFEGUARDS  TO PROTECT DATA MEMBERS 
 

31 - 33 

 To consider the report of the Senior Communication Officer 

 
 

10.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 

34 - 35 

 To update the Pension Board work programme for the year 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



PENSION BOARD 29.06.16 

 1 

 

 

 

PENSION BOARD, 29.06.16 

 

 

Present: Cllr Aled Evans (Gwynedd Council), Osian Richards (Members' Representative), 
Huw Trainor (North Wales Police) and Sharon Warnes (Members' Representative)  
 

Others invited: Councillor Stephen Churchman (Chair of the Pensions Committee) 
 

Officers: Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Caroline Roberts (Investment 
Manager), Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions Manager), Meirion Jones (Communication Officer 
- Pensions) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support Officer). 

 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2016 - 2017 

 

Resolved to elect Sharon Warnes (Members' Representative) as Chair of the 

Committee for 2016 - 2017 

 

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

 

Resolved to elect Huw Trainor (North Wales Police) as Vice-chair of the 

Committee for 2016 - 2017 

 

3. APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Anthony Deakin (Cartrefi Conwy) and Victoria 
Hallaron (Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd) 
 
Councillor Stephen Churchman (Chair of the Pensions Committee) was welcomed 
to the meeting. Reference was made to the intention to invite him to every meeting. 

 

4. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present.  

 

5. URGENT ITEMS 

 
None to note 

 

6. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee, held on 9 
March 2015, as a true record.  
 
In response to a question, it was noted that the Department for Communities and 
Local Government (DCLG) had not responded to the investment regulations 
consultation. 

 

7. PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 9.6.16 were accepted for 
information. The Chair of the Committee gave a brief background of the work of the 
Pensions Committee. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



PENSION BOARD 29.06.16 

 2 

 

Huw Trainor was nominated to attend the next meeting of the Committee as an 
observer. 

 

8. INVESTMENT POOLING FOR LGPS PENSION FUNDS 
Submitted – the report of the Head of Finance Department notifying Board 
members of the progress towards pooling investments. It was noted that a report 
had been submitted to the Pensions Committee on 9 June 2016 providing an 
update on the investment pooling consultation for the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) pensions funds in England and Wales.  
 
The following points were highlighted: 
 

 Confirm the intention to proceed to use a third party operator for joint-
investment 

 It was confirmed that individual funds would continue to have control over 
their own investment strategies (allocating to categories of assets) 

 Investment transfer discussions needed to be held to consider arrangements 
and implementation 

 That there was a need to engage regarding the role of Pension Boards, and 
whether a Pension Board for Wales would be needed  

 A Joint-committee (including Chairs of Pension Committees and Chief 
Officers) would be established to monitor and challenge the work of the 
operator Eversheds company had been appointed to advise on the 
constitution of the Joint-Committee - principles had been established 

 The Government would not give guidance in terms of the % of the fund to be 
invested in infrastructure - the Pool would be expected to make a statement 
of ambition (5% - 10%). 

 It was difficult to identify savings from the process - the Government would 
not insist that the Pool would adhere to its estimated saving 

 
During the ensuing discussion the following points were highlighted: 
 

 In the context of the categories of assets it was noted that risk and 
performance needed to be monitored. Discussions regarding fund 
rationalisation would need to be held in order to take advantage of the value 
/ size 

 There would be advantages of establishing a Pension Board for Wales 

 Would there be an opportunity for Members to be a part of the management 
procedure? The suggestion had already been made by Unison 

 Would CEM Benchmarking be monitoring the situation in the context of 
costs and savings? 

 
It was outlined that the decision of the Pensions Committee was 'to delegate the 
power to the Head of Finance Department, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Committee, to agree on the content of the Wales Pool presentation to the DCLG in 
July 2016'. It was intended to circulate a copy of the presentation to members of the 
Pensions Committee and members of the Pension Board. All were reminded that 
there would be confidential elements to the report. 
 
The information was accepted. 
 

 

9. COMMUNICATING WITH MEMBERS 

 
Submitted – for information, the report of the Pension Fund's Senior Communication 
Officer highlighting to Board Members the communication methods used by the 

Page 5



PENSION BOARD 29.06.16 

 3 

 

Gwynedd Pension Fund to communicate with fund members. It was highlighted that 
the fund had over 16 thousand members and the report listed the different methods 
of communication used to ensure that they received the best service. It was 
reported that every attempt was made to discuss with members face to face, but 
that there was a campaign currently underway to try to maximise the use of the self-
service facility on the website. It was acknowledged that the use of the self-service 
facility needed to be promoted further and that a circular would be sent to every 
member with the annual statement. It was also acknowledged that there was a need 
to promote further use of the website which, by adapting processes, would save 
time and money into the future. 
 
In response to a question regarding the possibility of using skype and video-
conferencing meetings to communicate with members, it was noted that this would 
be considered, together with other suggestions to improve communication with fund 
members.  
 
The report was accepted and the team were thanked for their work 
 

 

10. UPDATE TO THE COMMUNICATION POLICY 

 
Submitted – the report of the Pension Fund's Senior Communication Officer 
highlighting the draft Communication Policy which had been amended to include 
recent regulations.  
 
Under the Local Government Pension Scheme's Regulations, there was a legal 
requirement for the Gwynedd Pension Fund to publish a Communication Policy 
Statement. The Gwynedd Pension Fund Communication Policy Statement had been 
created to ensure clear communication to all various stakeholders of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme.  
 
The main methods of communication were highlighted and it was added that the 
Unit was always looking for new ideas to improve their service.  
 
In response to a question it was noted that most information forms were available 
on the website and that further work needed to be done to promote the use of the 
website.  
 
It was reported that the final policy would be submitted to the Pensions Committee 
for approval. 
 
The content of the policy was accepted. 
 

 

11. FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 2015/2016 

 
Submitted - the report of the Investment Manager highlighting a process for 
monitoring the performance of the pension fund investments. Though a request had 
been made by Board members for a quarterly report, it was highlighted that this was 
not effective as trends which were broader than the quarterly period needed to be 
considered (it was too short a period to assess the performance of investors).  
 
It was reported that the Pensions Committee met as an Investment Panel every 
quarter where they received detailed information from the investment managers on 
their performance. It was suggested that the Pension Board could assess 
performance annually, as well as assess the process. 
 

Page 6



PENSION BOARD 29.06.16 

 4 

 

In response to a question regarding submitting adequate information for the 
Pension Board to scrutinise, it was suggested that the CEM Benchmarking 
guidelines could be looked at. Whilst noting that this was possibly premature for the 
time being, the suggestion that Pension Board members needed to be able access 
information for them to better understand the process was accepted, and that the 
best way of implementing this needed to be considered. 

 
The information was accepted. 
 

 

12. VERBAL UPDATE ON THE VALUATION AND DATA TRANSFER 

 
The valuation timetable was circulated. It was noted that the appropriate information 
needed to be submitted to the actuary by 17 July 2016. It was noted that work was 
currently underway to ensure that the information was accurate and clean. The final 
meeting with the employers would be at 10:00am, 10 November 2016 (with an 
invitation for Pensions Committee and Board members). 
 
In response to a question regarding maximising the use of the i-Connect system, it 
was suggested that discussions between the Pensions Unit and Huw Trainor 
needed to continue in order to consider the possibilities shortly after the busy period 
of the valuation. The advantages of using the system included imposing adaptations 
/ corrections to data on a monthly basis rather than annually, which would reduce 
the pressure during the period of transferring the data to the actuary. 

 

 

13. SUMMARY RESULTS FROM LOCAL PENSION BOARD SURVEY 

 
Submitted – the report of the Investment Manager notifying the members of the 
results of a short survey undertaken by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) on the Local Pension Boards. The purpose of the survey 
was to seek to provide a baseline on the establishment and operations of Pension 
Boards. It was reported that Gwynedd Council had responded to the survey and that 
the result provided an opportunity to assess how the Gwynedd Pension Board 
compared with other Pension Boards. The intention was for CIPFA to use the 
information in order to develop discussion sessions for workshops. 
 
It was reported that Gwynedd Council acted in line with other Pension Boards and 
that the survey had not suggested changes to the procedure. 
 
In response to an observation regarding submitting an annual report, the Chair 
highlighted that she had already started to write a draft report and that there was a 
request for observations to be forwarded to her. It was intended to submit the final 
report to the Annual Meeting of the Pension Fund on 15 September 2016. 
 
The information was noted. 

 

14. AMENDED WORK PLAN 

 
Submitted - the amended work plan for the year 2016 - 2017. 
 
It was suggested that the item 'Update on Investment Pooling' should be included 
as a standing item. 

 

 Following the decision in item 11 above (Fund Investment Performance), 
this would be discussed on an annual basis not quarterly. 

Page 7



PENSION BOARD 29.06.16 

 5 

 

 
The work plan was accepted.  

 

15. FEEDBACK FROM LGPS TRUSTEES’ CONFERENCE 

 
It was reported that the conference had been interesting with good speakers 
presenting information. It was suggested that further notes from the conference 
would be shared with the members and the officers. 
 
A request was made for officers to look into indemnity insurance cover for the 
Pension Board.  

 

16. FEEDBACK FROM ESG WORKSHOP / SEMINAR 

 
Notes from the conference were circulated by the Chair for the officers to consider 
when discussing investments. 
 
In response, it was reported that it would be possible to present the information from 
the conferences for Hymans to consider. 

 
The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 4:10pm. 

Page 8



PENSIONS COMMITTEE15.09.16 

 1 

 

 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 15.09.2016 

 

 

Present: Councillors: Stephen Churchman, Trevor Edwards, Peredur Jenkins, Margaret 
Lyon (Conwy County Borough Council Representative), W Tudor Owen (Chair), John P. 
Roberts and Glyn Thomas  
 
Officers:- Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Caroline Roberts (Investment 
Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support Officer). 

 

1. APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Seimon Glyn and H. Eifion Jones (Isle of 
Anglesey County Council Representative)  
 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 None to note 
 

3. URGENT ITEMS 
 
None to note 
 

4. MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of a meeting of this committee, held on 9 June 2016, 
as a true record. 

 

5. 2015 - 2016 TREASURY MANAGEMENT  
 
(a)  A report was submitted by the Investment Manager detailing how the Pension 

Fund’s cash was invested along with the Council’s money in 2015/16. The report 
responded to the requirements of the Welsh Government’s Statutory Guidance. 

 
(b)  It was outlined that the security of the investment was the Authority's main 

investment objective and it was explained how the money had been invested in 
order to maximise the benefits. It was noted that combining the funds sought 
better returns.  

 
(c)  The recommendation to accept the report was proposed and seconded. 
 

THE REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER WAS RECEIVED FOR 

INFORMATION 
 

 

6. FIDELITY FEES 

 
(a) Submitted - the report of the Head of Finance Department recommending that the 

Committee accepted the offer from Fidelity of new fee scale in order to seek to 
reduce costs. With the fund having secured significant savings from the reductions 
in Blackrock fees as a result of passive equity investments pooling of the Welsh 
funds, there was an opportunity to review the Fidelity fees. It was noted that the 
risks had been considered and that advice had been received from Hymans 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



PENSIONS COMMITTEE15.09.16 

 2 

 

(which had been circulated to Committee Members), recommending moving to a 
new fee scale. It was reiterated that the pooling of funds had led to the offer which 
was likely to be advantageous to the Fund. 
 

(b) The recommendation was proposed and seconded. 
 

RESOLVED TO ACCEPT THE OFFER FROM FIDELITY OF NEW FEE SCALE 

FORTHWITH 
 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 1pm and concluded at 1:20pm. 

 

  

Page 10



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 20.10.16 

 1 

 

 

 
SPECIAL PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 20.10.2016 

 

 

Present: Councillors: Stephen Churchman (Chairman), Peredur Jenkins, Margaret Lyon 
(Conwy County Borough Council Representative), W. Tudor Owen, John P. Roberts and 
Sharon Warnes (Chair of the Pensions Board)  
 
Officers: Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Iwan Evans (Head of Legal 
Services), Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support 
Officer).  

 

1. APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Trevor Edwards, Seimon Glyn, Glyn 
Thomas and H. Eifion Jones (Isle of Anglesey County Council Representative),  
 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 None to note 
 

3. URGENT ITEMS 
 
None to note 

 

4. WALES INVESTMENT POOL 
 

(a) Submitted – the report of the Head of Finance Department updating the Members 
on the progress made to the development of the Wales Investment Pool for the 
purpose of managing the investment assets of eight Local Government Pension 
Schemes in Wales on a collaborative basis. It was noted that the project had moved 
forward since an agreement had been reached to set up a General Investment 
Vehicle in September 2015, with additional information about the process being 
submitted in February 2016 (stating what would be submitted to the DCLG) and 
later on, in June 2016 (about the presentation to the Treasury and the DCLG). 
 

(b) Attention was drawn to the need for regular reporting on the proposal to co-invest, 
and sharing current information to ensure consistency. It was reported that the work 
of administrating the Gwynedd Fund would remain in Gwynedd with investment 
taking place partly in Gwynedd and in the Wales Investment Pool. It was confirmed 
that the Pensions Committee would continue to set out the Investment Strategy and 
would decide how many assets would need to be categorised. Having agreed on 
the portfolio, those elements would be transferred to the manager (operator) to be 
implemented, appointing managers (companies) to invest on behalf of the eight 
funds in Wales.  

 
(c) That the eight funds in Wales were constant, was reiterated; and there was 

agreement on the need to set up a Joint Committee that would set out a 
governance procedure to ensure accountability and to challenge decisions. In order 
for this to be implemented, it was suggested that one representative from each of 
the eight funds would sit on this Joint Committee.  

 

Page 11



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 20.10.16 

 2 

 

Reference was made to the content of the report along with the memorandum of 
understanding (draft) in which the procedures for the short term and the future were 
explained. 

 
ch)  Considering the next steps, the Head of Finance explained that a formal report 

would be submitted to the Full Council in March 2017 which would recommend that 
the Council revise the Council's constitution for the future, so that the Joint 
Committee would retain some of the powers of the Pensions Committee. 

 
(d) The Head of Legal Services confirmed that, in embarking on a formal procedure of 

setting up a Joint National Committee, initial steps would need to be in place to 
begin the procurement process for a new investment procedure. Consequently, as 
highlighted, it would be appropriate to establish a clear framework of governance.  It 
was noted that the memorandum of understanding would not legally bind the 
Council into the process, but would rather create a framework to ensure the input of 
Chair persons and Senior Finance Officers to the process and allow the initial work 
to commence. In addition, it was noted that the Joint Committee did not have the 
right to make decisions, only the right to make recommendations and support the 
process, providing guidance as required. 
 

(dd) The Chairman highlighted the fact that much additional work had been completed 
by Gwynedd Council Finance Department and Legal Department; and all officers 
involved with that work were thanked. 

 

RESOLVED 

 

i. That the Committee notes the progress to the development of the 

Wales Investment Pool. 

ii. That the Committee approves the draft Memorandum of 

Understanding. 

iii. That the Committee delegates the right to agree any changes to the 

Memorandum of Understanding to the Head of Finance, in 

consultaton with the Chairman. 

iv. That the Committee appoints a Chairman, Councillor Stephen 

Churchman, to represent the Committee on the Joint Chair Persons' 

Group, or the Vice-chairman, Councillor Peredur Jenkins, in the 

Chairman's absence. 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 1pm and concluded at 1:20pm. 

Page 12



MEETING  
 

PENSION BOARD 

DATE 
 

5 DECEMBER 2016  

TITLE ACTUARIAL VALUATION 2016 – UPDATE ON THE PROCESS 
 

PURPOSE 
 

To inform the board  of the work to date and the draft results 

AUTHOR  
 

CAROLINE ROBERTS, INVESTMENT MANAGER 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

The Pension Fund’s actuary is currently working on the actuarial valuation 
as at 31 March 2016. The process has reached the stage where the draft 
Formal Valuation Initial Results 2016 have been produced. The overall 
employer contribution rate for the fund has been calculated and employers  
received their individual rates at the employer meeting  on 10th November.  

 
 
2. FORMAL FUNDING VALUATION INITIAL RESULTS 2016  
 

The funding level on the agreed funding basis has improved from 85% in 
2013 to 91% in 2016. In addition, the funding deficit has decreased. The 
main reason for the change in the funding level over the period was better 
than anticipated investment returns. These have more than offset 
increases in the value placed on the liabilities due to the changes in the 
financial assumptions used. 
 
The following table shows the draft initial whole fund results of the 2016 
formal valuation based on our agreed funding basis with the results at the 
2013 formal valuation shown for comparison. 
 
 

Valuation Date 31 March 2013 31 March 2016 

Past Service 
Liabilities 
Employees 
Deferred Pensioners 
Pensioners 

£m 
699 
185 
521 

£m 
762 
251 
657 

Total Liabilities 
Assets 
Deficit 
Funding Level 

1,405 
1,195 
(210) 
85% 

1,670 
1,525 
(145) 
91% 

3. CONTRIBUTION RATES 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Within the fund level figures there will be differences for individual 
employers depending on the profile of their members. Every employer has 
their own tailored funding plan and valuation results will vary depending on 
their own membership, funding plan and experience since the last 
valuation (of since they joined the Fund). However, changes in market 
conditions may put upward, but manageable pressure on employer rates, 
both in respect of future service and of paying off any deficit. 
 
The primary rate (for future service) for each employer varies between 
16.3% and 33.2% and the secondary rate (for deficit payments) varies 
between £3.1million a £1,000. The employers which are in surplus can 
subtract between 12.4% and 0.08% from their primary rate. 
 
Some employers are still discussing their new rate and there may be some 
changes before the final rates are agreed. A schedule of the final rates will 
be published with the Funding Strategy Statement in March 2017. 

 
 
4. SMALLER EMPLOYERS 
 

During the 2013 valuation process the decision was made to disband the 
two small employer pools. The Fund arranged ill health retirement 
insurance as requirement for these employers to protect them from the 
high costs of any such retirements. The changes in individual employer 
contributions from the pool rate are being phased in over a longer period 
and this will be taken into account in setting the contributions for these 
bodies.  
 

 
5. NEXT STEPS 
 

The next steps include  
 

 Confirmation of individual employer rates for the next three years.  

 Producing the fund’s Funding Strategy Statement(FSS) which sets 
out the strategy and policy for the funding of the fund over the three 
years from 1 April 2017. The draft FSS will be taken to the 
Pensions Committee on 19 January 2017 for discussion and 
approval. Following the approval there will be a consultation with 
employers and other interested parties before the final FSS is 
adopted by the Pensions Committee in March 2017. Members of 
the Pension Board will receive a copy of the draft FSS for 
consultation and can discuss the contents in the February board 
meeting before the consultation closes. 

 The Full Report on the Actuarial Statement will be produced in 
March and a copy will published on the Pension Fund website. 

 Following previous actuarial valuations there was a requirement a 
Statement of Investment Principles which defined the limits on the 

Page 14



different types of investment agreed. This has now been replaced 
by the Investment Statement which will contain the investment 
strategy that the fund will develop to achieve its funding aims. The 
Investment Strategy will be prepared in conjunction with the fund’s 
advisor to be adopted by 1st April 2017. 
 
 

6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Members are requested to consider the process and draft results. The 
Board will have an opportunity to scrutinise the Funding Strategy 
Statement and the Investment Statement before adoption by 31 March 
2017. 

Page 15



MEETING  
 

PENSION BOARD 

DATE 
 

5 DECEMBER 2016  

TITLE INVESTMENT POOLING 
 

PURPOSE 
 

To inform the board of the work to date 

AUTHOR  
 

CAROLINE ROBERTS, INVESTMENT MANAGER 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

This report provides members of the board with an update on the Investment 
Pooling collaboration in Wales. 
 
Members are aware that the 8 LGPS funds in Wales have submitted a 
proposal to UK Government to enable them to pool their £13bn of 
investments. The aim is to reduce investment management costs and through 
joint governance arrangements share knowledge and best practice which will 
assist with managing investment risks with the aim of improving fund returns. 
 
 

2. PRESS RELEASE 
 

The project will be releasing a press release in the near future with an update 
on the joint progress based on the following information. 
 
The LGPS funds within Wales wish to appoint a third party FCA regulated 
Operator to establish and run a range of collective investment vehicles (CIVs) 
to allow the pooling of their pension fund assets. 

 
The primary objectives behind this initiative are to achieve savings on 
investment management costs through economies of scale and also to 
provide access for funds to a wider range of potential investment 
opportunities. 
 
Asset allocation decisions (the amounts invested in equities, bonds, property 
and other asset types) will differ between funds and will remain the 
responsibility of each individual LGPS fund participating in the Welsh pool.  
 

The CIV will provide a range of sub‐funds that will be the building blocks 
enabling individual funds to implement their investment strategy. The 
Operator will be responsible for contracting with investment managers – this is 
a regulatory requirement – and putting in place the necessary depositary, 
custody and asset servicing arrangements for the CIV(s).  
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



The detailed specification of the services required will be informed by engagement 
with potential suppliers who have expressed interest following the Public Information 
Notice which is a precursor to a tender process. 
 
It is anticipated that the formal tender will be issued before the end of 2016, with a 
final decision likely on the preferred supplier(s) by spring 2017. This will be a new 
appointment since the regulated LGPS investment pool and CIVs will be new 
arrangements for the Welsh LGPS funds. 
 
The estimated value of assets to be included within the Wales Pool is in the region of 
£13bn. Initially some of these assets may remain outside of the new collective 
investment vehicles. 
 
The aim is for the Wales LGPS CIV to be operational in 2017, ahead of the 
government proposals for the creation of LGPS investment pools by April 2018. 
 
The LGPS funds in Wales are encouraged by amount of interest from potential 
suppliers in response to the Public Information Notice. 
 
 
3. GOVERNANCE 
 
The eight Welsh funds have agreed that a Joint Committee is the best structure for 
governance of the pool. The Chair for the Pensions Committee will attend the 
meetings and each fund has one vote. A deputy from each Pensions Committee may 
attend if the Chair is not available. The shadow Joint Committee had its first meeting 
on 11 November and Councillor Stephen Churchman, Chair of the Pensions 
Committee attended as Gwynedd’s representative. 
 
 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Members of the board are requested to note the information provided and the 
progress achieved to date. 
 

Page 17



MEETING  
 

PENSION BOARD 

DATE 
 

5 DECEMBER 2016  

TITLE THE PENSIONS REGULATOR 
2016 PUBLIC SERVICE GOVERNANCE SURVEY 

PURPOSE 
 

To inform the board  of the work to date and the draft results 

AUTHOR  
 

CAROLINE ROBERTS, INVESTMENT MANAGER 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The Pensions Regulator has issued a survey for each local scheme manager to 
complete for the pension fund it administers. Gwynedd Council is the local scheme 
manager for the Gwynedd Pension Fund and is therefore responsible for completing 
the survey. 
 
The survey should be completed by the scheme manager working with the Pension 
Board chair. The Chairman of the Gwynedd Pension Board believes that the best 
way is for the Board to look at the survey and consider its response. The closing 
date for responses is 21 December 2016.  
 

2. THE SURVEY 

A copy of the survey is attached as Appendix A. The responses to the questions will 
be considered at this meeting and a final version will be agreed with the Chairman 
before it is sent to The Pensions Regulator. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 
 

Meeting: Pension Board 

Date: 05/12/2016 

Title: Protecting member’s data 

Purpose: For information only 

Author: Meirion Jones, Senior Communication Officer 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) is a United Kingdom Act of Parliament which defines the law on 
the processing of data on identifiable living people and is the main piece of legislation that governs 
the data protection. 
 
The Fund collects, stores and use information provided by members or their employer, in a manner 
that is compliance with the DPA. We are committed to protecting the member’s privacy and keep their 
personal data secure (whether it is held on paper or electronically) and up to date. 
 
Everyone responsible for using data has to follow strict rules called ‘data protection principles’. They 
must make sure the information is: 
 

 used fairly and lawfully 

 used for a specifically stated purposes 

 used in a way that is adequate, relevant and not excessive 

 accurate 

 kept for no longer than is absolutely necessary 

 handled according to people’s data protection rights 

 kept safe and secure 
 
What information to do we store? 
 
The information stored includes personal details about our members: 
 

 Name 

 Address 

 National Insurance number 

 Date of birth 

 Marital status 

 Salary details 

 Scheme membership 

 Bank details  
 
We use these details for all aspects of administering the membership responsibilities under the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, not least the calculation and payment of benefits. 
 
How is the information stored?  
 
Most of the information is stored on our computerised database system Altair provided by Aquila 
Heywood and our Payroll system Cyborg. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 
Information is also stored on microfilm and paper files. Once work is completed on a record the 
paperwork is scanned and stored electronically on Altair. Paper documents are then stored for 6 
months before being destroyed securely.   
 
Information received from Employers such as the end of year spreadsheets are stored on the 
Pensions Section’s drives on the Gwynedd Council network.  
 
Who do we share information with? 
 
We share information with: 
 

 Our actuary Hymans Robertson, as we are required by law to have the funding level of the Fund 
assessed every three years. To do this the actuary must use information about members as well 
as information about contribution income and investments. 
 

 Club Vita, a wholly owned subsidiary of our actuary, which helps the actuary in forecasting the 
lifespans of members. 
 

 the HMRC and other statutory organisations. These include other LGPS administering authorities 
if we are, or may be, paying or receiving a pensions transfer. 
 

 the South Yorkshire Pensions Authority, who maintain a database of National Insurance numbers, 
and the funds where people are members, for LGPS funds in England and Wales. This database 
is necessary as in the event of someone dying who has more than one LGPS pensions account, 
only one death grant - the largest - can be paid. The database enables a fund dealing with a 
death to check for other LGPS pension accounts elsewhere. 

 

 Printing firms who print our annual benefit statements. 
 

 Clerical Medical, being the insurance company we have appointed regarding scheme additional 
voluntary contributions. 

 
We also share identifying data about pensioners (but not amounts of pension) with a mortality tracing 
agency who use it, in conjunction with the death registers for England, Northern Ireland, Scotland and 
Wales, to identify pensioner deaths that have not been reported to us. 
 
Pensioner data is also used in the Government’s National Fraud Initiative. This is an exercise that 
matches electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to prevent and detect 
fraud. 
 
We also pay pensions in the UK using BACS (the Bankers' Automated Clearing Service), to whom we 
necessarily have to supply data to allow payments to be made. Likewise to Western Union when 
pensions are being paid overseas. 

 
How do we protect the member’s details? 
 

 A username and password is required to access the Gwynedd network and the Altair and 
Cyborg systems. 
 

 Passwords are changed on a regular basis and must confirm to strict guidelines.  
 

 Egress is used to receive and send emails with a number of our employers. This a secure 
email which encrypts the message when it is sent. 

 

 Access to the Pension Section office is restricted to Pension and Payroll staff. Access is only 
granted with a keycard specially programmed to allow access. 

 

 When transferring data to external organisations e.g. sending over annual benefit statement 
details to the printers a secure portal is used.  

 

 All information supplied by members must be supplied by letter or email. Details will not be 
taken over the phone e.g. new address or bank details. 

Page 32



 

 A member’s written authority is required before we disclose information with other companies 
such as the member’s financial advisors or another pension scheme.   
 

 Staff must complete an online training module on data protection and confirm that they will 
comply with the DPA. 
 

 The Altair system logs out automatic following a period of inactivity.  
 

 The Altair system is backed up to the server on a nightly basis. 
 

 

Page 33



MEETING:   PENSION BOARD 
 
DATE:    5 DECEMBER 201 
 
TITLE:   AMENDED WORK PLAN 
 
PURPOSE: To update the Pension Board work programme for 

the year 
 
RECOMMENDATION: AGREE A WORK PLAN 
 
AUTHOR:   CAROLINE ROBERTS, INVESTMENT MANAGER 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The development of a work programme for future meetings was started at the 
meeting of the Pension Board last December when items were prioritised for future 
meetings. 
 
 
2. Amended Work Programme 

 
The work programme below has been amended and updated following consideration 
by the Board in previous meetings and matters arising. 
 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 
05/12/16 

 Employer risk and covenants 

 Actuary discussions / update 

 Outline of the security measures in place to protect members data 

 Outcome of training 

 Training plan 
 

 
13/02/17 

 Draft Funding Strategy Statement consultation 

 Draft Investment Strategy Statement consultation 

 Scrutinise and understand a variety of investment methods  

 When was the appointment of the following last reviewed and how does this 
timeframe compare with national standards: 

o Investment managers 
o Custodian 
o Investment advisors 
o Actuary 

Page 34

Agenda Item 10



 Risk register 

 Publications (excluding Annual Report) 
 

 
06/04/17 

 Conflicts of interest 
 
 
Matters that arise during the year can be added to the programme as required, as is 
the case with the items on this agenda regarding the recent consultations on pooling 
and investment regulations. 
 
The dates for meetings after the 6th April 2017 are not yet available and the 
programme will updated once the dates are known. 
 
 
3. Recommendation 
 
The Board is asked to consider the above programme and suggest any additions or 
changes if required. 
 

Page 35


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	2016-10-20 Minutes

	6 ACTUARIAL VALUATION 2016 - UPDATE ON THE PROCESS
	7 INVESTMENT POOLING
	8 THE PENSIONS REGULATOR PUBLIC SERVICE SURVEY 2016
	Appendix 1 The Pensions Regulator - Public Service Governance Survey 2016

	9 SAFEGUARDS  TO PROTECT DATA MEMBERS
	10 WORK PROGRAMME

